
UNITED 
NATIONS 

Economic and Social 
Council 

D i s t r . 
GENERAL 

E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
5 September 1989 

ENGLISH 
O r i g i n a l : FRENCH 

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS 

F o r t y - f i f t h session 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 41st MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Tuesday, 28 Febriiary 1989, at 10 a.m. 

Chairman; Mr. BOSSUYT (Belgium) 

Implementation of the Déclaration on the Elimination of A l l Forms of 
Intolerance and of Discrimination Based on Re l i g i o n or B e l i e f (continued) 

Consideration of the report of the mission which took place i n Cuba i n 
accordance with Conmission decision 1988/106 

This record i s subject to correction. 

Corrections should be submitted i n one of the working languages. They 
should be set f o r t h i n a memoreuidum and also incorporated i n a copy of the 
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of t h i s document to 
the O f f i c i a l Records E d i t i n g Section, room E.4108, P a l a i s des Nations, Geneva. 

Any corrections to the records of the public meetings of the Commission 
at t h i s session w i l l be consolidated i n a si n g l e corrigendum, to be issued 
s h o r t l y a f t e r the end of the session. 

CONTENTS 

GE.89-11230/0975B 



E/C3N.A/1989/SR.41 
page 2 

The meeting was c a l l e d to order at 10.05 a.m. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE DECLARATION ON THE ELIMINATION OF ALL FORMS OF 
INTOLERANCE AND OF DISCRIMINATION BASED ON RELIGION OR BELIEF (agenda item 22) 
(continued) (E/CN.4/1989/44, E/CN.4/1989/67) 

1. Mr. HAWKES (Observer f o r Ireland) said that freedom of r e l i g i o n was a 
univ e r s a l r i g h t , recognized as such i n various i n t e r n a t i o n a l instruments. 
Those instruments, l i k e the Declaration on the Elimination of A l l Forms of 
Intolerance and of Discrimination Based on R e l i g i o n or B e l i e f , l e f t no 
doubt as to the obligations of States i n the matter. It was extremely-
alarming to note, therefore, i n reading the report of Mr. d'Almeida Ribeiro 
(E/CN.4/1989/44), that that r i g h t was f a r from u n i v e r s a l l y respected and that 
manifestations of r e l i g i o u s intolerance continued to p e r s i s t i n many parts of 
the world i n various forms, the worst being d i s c r i m i n a t i o n against members of 
minority r e l i g i o n s or dissident members of the same r e l i g i o n . Religious 
fanaticism was at the o r i g i n of v i o l a t i o n s of some of the most fundamental 
human ri g h t s and gravely i m p e r i l l e d the cause of r e l i g i o u s freedom. 

2. It was e s s e n t i a l that a l l Governments should co-operate with the Special 
Rapporteur i n h i s v i t a l task, i n the same way as the I r i s h Government, which 
had responded to requests f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n by the Special Rapporteur 
regarding alleged d i s c r i m i n a t i o n against non-believers i n the f i e l d s of 
education and health. In a d d i t i o n , the Commission should concentrate i t s 
e f f o r t s on the way i n which a l l States were complying with t h e i r o bligations 
under the various i n t e r n a t i o n a l human ri g h t s instruments. The Special 
Rapporteur had an important r o l e to play i n that regard, and the Commission 
should therefore do nothing that might undermine his work. His Government 
therefore urged the Commission to await the report i t had requested from the 
Sub-Commission by i t s r e s o l u t i o n 1988/55 before embarking on the elaboration 
of a l e g a l l y binding convention on freedom of r e l i g i o n or b e l i e f . Such an 
i n i t i a t i v e could damage what should be the common objective, namely, to 
v i n d i c a t e the r i g h t of every individtxal to freedom i n a l l areas. 

3. Mr. NASSERI (Observer f o r the Islamic Republic of Iran), speaking i n 
exercise of the r i g h t of reply, s a i d i t was important to place the scandal 
caused by Mr. Rushdie's book i n proper perspective. 

4. F i r s t , i t should not be forgotten that the p o s i t i o n of the Imam Khomeini 
was purely d o c t r i n a l and i d e o l o g i c a l , and was grounded i n the p r i n c i p l e s , 
values and t r a d i t i o n s of Islam, and that i t was approved by a l l Muslims. 
Non-believers were not i n a good p o s i t i o n to make a judgement about a decision 
that was e s s e n t i a l l y i d e o l o g i c a l i n nature. Second, the p o l i t i c a l aspect of 
the a f f a i r must not be ignored. It was c l e a r that freedom of expression was 
not something absolute and could not be exercised without l i m i t a t i o n s . How 
was i t p o s s i b l e , i n the name of that l i b e r t y , to f l o u t , trample underfoot and 
i n s u l t d e l i b e r a t e l y and openly the values and p r i n c i p l e s to which Muslims were 
so profoundly attached? In deciding to support Mr. Rushdie and h i s work, some 
Western coimtries had encouraged the p u b l i c a t i o n of that book, thereby paving 
the way to b l o o d l e t t i n g . Those countries had c l e a r l y adopted a s e l e c t i v e 
a t t i t u d e and would not have behaved i n the same way i f the subject had been a 
r e l i g i o n other than Islam. They were, i n f a c t , using the a f f a i r f o r p o l i t i c a l 
ends and making i t into a c o n f l i c t between the West and the Islamic Republic 
of Iran. The whole matter would serve to show that Islamic values must not be 
treated l i g h t l y . The West might well prove u l t i m a t e l y not to be the winner. 



E/CN.A/1989/SR.41 
page 3 

5. Mr. DQLGU (Observer f o r Romania), speaking i n exercise of the r i g h t 
of reply, s a i d that none of the many speakers - some with p o l i t i c a l 
r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s i n t h e i r countries - who had denigrated Romania since the 
s t a r t of the session of the Commission had had d i r e c t contact with the r e a l 
s i t u a t i o n i n Romania. They merely quoted foreign sources, s o - c a l l e d public 
opinion and press a r t i c l e s , and repeated the slanderous comments o r i g i n a t i n g 
from persons who had betrayed t h e i r country or from quarters which were 
c r i t i c a l of Romania's domestic and foreign p o l i c i e s . 

6. Hungary's aims were numerous and well known to the Romanian people for 
centuries. Hungary was, among other things, seeking to eliminate the Romanian 
minority of that country, to sow discord between peoples and prevent the 
Hungarian people from turning i t s attention to the serious and complex 
problems which that country was now experiencing. 

7. A l l Romanian c i t i z e n s enjoyed equal r i g h t s , without d i s t i n c t i o n of any 
kind, and the r i g h t to work, health, education, culture and housing was 
guaranteed to a l l . Romania was also endeavouring to maintain f u l l emplojrment, 
and i n p a r t i c u l a r the State guaranteed each student or p u p i l , on completion of 
his studies, a job corresponding to h i s professional t r a i n i n g . The s a l a r i e s 
of a l l categories of workers, as well as s o c i a l insurance benefits and family 
allowances, were r i s i n g s t e a d i l y . Since 1965 Romania had undertaken a vast 
programme of housing construction as a r e s u l t of which more than 80 per cent 
of the population now l i v e d i n new homes. New h o s p i t a l s , c l i n i c s and 
dispensaries had been opened, and the number of medical s t a f f had also 
increased; there was now 1 doctor per 472 inhabitants and more than 
135,000 medical a u x i l i a r i e s . The management of the economy and of p o l i t i c a l 
l i f e i n the country had a profoundly democratic b a s i s . A l l c i t i z e n s -
workers, peasants and i n t e l l e c t u a l s - p a r t i c i p a t e d i n the administration of 
enterprises and the formulation of p o l i c i e s i n various f i e l d s , as well as i n 
the adoption and implementation of decisions It would be desirable that the 
fundamental human r i g h t s to l i f e , work and education were r e a l i z e d i n a l l 
countries and that, as i n Romania, emplojrment and educational opportunities 
for young people were gtiaranteed everywhere. 

8. Romania was ready to welcome a l l those who wished to know the truth and 
to appreciate the r e a l s i t u a t i o n i n Romania and the r e s u l t s of the work of the 
Romanian people. It was i n favour of dialogue and co-operation with everyone 
who showed good f a i t h but i t rejected, as i t had always done and would 
continue to do, any interference i n i t s i n t e r n a l a f f a i r s . Romania was working 
a c t i v e l y to e s t a b l i s h good r e l a t i o n s with a l l States, on condition that that 
was done on the basis of respect f o r the p r i n c i p l e s of n a t i o n a l independence 
and sovereignty, e q u a l i t y of r i g h t s and non-interference i n i n t e r n a l a f f a i r s . 

9. Mr. YAVUZALP (Observer f o r Turkey) said that the report prepared by 
Mr. d'Almeida Ribeiro (E/CN.4/1989/44) was the outcome of painstaking work 
and represented a p o s i t i v e contribution to the elimination of r e l i g i o u s 
intolerance and d i s c r i m i n a t i o n . His delegation nevertheless regretted the 
f a c t that the Special Rapporteur had not made a c l e a r e r d i s t i n c t i o n , i n terms 
of t h e i r degree of seriousness, between the various cases of intolerance noted 
i n the 23 countries mentioned i n chapter II of the teport, with the r e s u l t 
that too much attention might be given to the less serious cases and not 
enough to the most serious ones. 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 4 

10. The l a t t e r included persecution of the Turkish Muslim minority i n 
Bulgaria. The signing of a protocol between Turkey and Bulgaria i n 
February 1988 had r a i s e d hopes that the process of b i l a t e r a l negotiations 
would contribute to r e s t o r i n g that minority's legitimate c u l t u r a l and 
r e l i g i o u s r i g h t s and thus to r e s o l v i n g that humanitarian problem, which had 
been a source of concern at both the na t i o n a l and i n t e r n a t i o n a l l e v e l and had 
jeopardized r e l a t i o n s between the two countries. Unfortunately, Bulgaria had 
not changed i t s p o l i c y and the Turks were continuing to be persecuted i n that 
country. The problem confronting them was a much more serious question than 
that of r e l i g i o u s intolerance or deprivation of r e l i g i o u s r i g h t s . It was the 
negation of the ethnic, c u l t u r a l and r e l i g i o u s i d e n t i t y of a whole people. 
That anachronous s i t u a t i o n must be a matter of concern f o r a l l those defending 
the cause of hvonan r i g h t s and e s p e c i a l l y the Commission. Everything indicated 
that, f o r the Bulgarian Government, the dialogue begun a f t e r the signature of 
the protocol was a means of preventing the a t t e n t i o n of the i n t e r n a t i o n a l 
community from being brought to bear on the problem rather than a means of 
re s o l v i n g i t . The representatives of Bulgaria i n the Commission and i n other 
bodies had always refused to discuss the subject or give reasons f o r t h e i r 
inadmissible behaviour, except to deny h i s t o r y o u t r i g h t , and they had 
preferred to make f a l s e a l l e g a t i o n s against Turkey. It was to be hoped that 
one day Bulgaria would imderstand that, even i f those a l l e g a t i o n s had been 
founded, nothing that might happen i n Turkey could j u s t i f y those acts, f o r 
which i t would always bear r e s p o n s i b i l i t y before the i n t e r n a t i o n a l community. 

11. His delegation once again i n v i t e d the Bulgarian Goveztunent to respect i t s 
b i l a t e r a l and m u l t i l a t e r a l undertakings with regard to the Turkish minority 
and i t s i n t e r n a t i o n a l commitments concerning m i n o r i t i e s i n general, including 
i t s o b l i g a t i o n s under the f i n a l document of the l a s t Vienna session of the 
Conference on Security and Co-operation i n Europe. 

12. Mr. LOAIZA (Observer f o r B o l i v i a ) said that h i s delegation had studied 
with i n t e r e s t the report prepared by Mr. d'Almeida Ribeiro (E/CN.4/1989/44). 

13. In h i s delegation's view, the very importance acquired i n i n t e r n a t i o n a l 
law by the i n t e r n a t i o n a l covenants on human r i g h t s and other s i m i l a r 
instruments suggested that the adoption of new i n t e r n a t i o n a l standards would 
have the e f f e c t of further strengthening human r i g h t s , p a r t i c u l a r l y i n the 
area of freedom of r e l i g i o n . For that reason, hi s delegation supported the 
proposal to set up a working group to d r a f t an i n t e r n a t i o n a l convention on the 
elimination of a l l forms of intolerance and of d i s c r i m i n a t i o n based on 
r e l i g i o n or b e l i e f . A l l the various r e l i g i o u s cultures of the world would 
have to be taken into account i n order to formulate a set of standards which 
could be accepted by consensus. Freedom of r e l i g i o n was a very d e l i c a t e 
question. Although throughout the world there was an increasing awareness of 
the need to respect, protect and promote human r i g h t s and fimdamental freedoms 
and of the f a c t that those r i g h t s should be embodied i n various i n t e r n a t i o n a l 
instruments, r e l i g i o u s intolerance p e r s i s t e d i n various parts of the world. 

14. Mr. GYURIS (Observer f o r Hungary) said that, i n Hungary, r e l a t i o n s 
between the State and the various churches and r e l i g i o u s denominations were 
based on recognition of the equality of r i g h t s of a l l c i t i z e n s and on the need 
to eliminate a l l forms of d i s c r i m i n a t i o n and to ensure respect f o r each 
person's i n a l i e n a b l e r i g h t s . The signature i n 1984 of a convention between 
Hungary and the Holy See had made i t possible to resolve a very large number 
of the outstanding problems and had encouraged the development of f r i e n d l y and 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 5 

f r u i t f u l r e l a t i o n s between the Catholic Church of Hungary and the Holy See on 
the one hand and between the Hungarian Government and the Vatican on the 
other. The next v i s i t of His Holiness the Pope to Hungary would further 
strengthen those r e l a t i o n s , which presupposed a common p o s i t i o n on a l l the 
major problems of the contemporary world. It should be pointed out i n that 
regard that, i n commenting on the message issued by John Paul II on 
1 January 1989 s e t t i n g out the p o s i t i o n of the Roman Catholic Church on 
national and r e l i g i o u s m i n o r i t i e s , the Hungarian National Assembly had stated 
that respect f o r the r i g h t s of ethnic, national and r e l i g i o u s m i n o r i t i e s was a 
sine qua non f o r the maintenance of peace and that the i n d i v i d u a l and 
c o l l e c t i v e r i g h t s of mi n o r i t i e s formed a p a r t i c u l a r l y important element of 
human r i g h t s . 

15. The Hungarian Government maintained c o r d i a l r e l a t i o n s not only with the 
Catholic Church of Hungary but also with the Protestant Church and other 
denominations. Furthermore, the constructive dialogue which had been 
established between b e l i e v e r s and athe i s t s during the previous few years had 
assumed i n t e r n a t i o n a l dimensions. The churches could make a p o s i t i v e 
contribution to the l i f e of society i n a l l f i e l d s . Thus, the Hungarian 
churches were a c t i v e l y concerned with the refugee problem and also played an 
important r o l e i n the area of health by p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n programmes f o r the 
handicapped, drug addicts and a l c o h o l i c s . They also co-operated i n the e f f o r t s 
made by the State to protect the nation's c u l t u r a l heritage - e s p e c i a l l y 
through the conservation and maintenance of h i s t o r i c a l monuments - and to 
propagate the s p i r i t u a l values embodied i n various kinds of works of a r t . 

16. The a t t i t u d e of the Commission at the current session showed that the 
in t e r n a t i o n a l community was determined to take action against a l l 
manifestations of intolerance and a l l kinds of v i o l a t i o n s of human r i g h t s and 
fundamental freedoms. His delegation wished to emphasize the paramount 
importance of tolerance of the views and b e l i e f s of others. A State that did 
not respect the c u l t u r a l and s p i r i t u a l values of the various ethnic and 
r e l i g i o u s m i n o r i t i e s l i v i n g within i t s t e r r i t o r y and f a i l e d to ben e f i t from 
that d i v e r s i t y was, as St. Stephen, the foimder of the Hungarian State, had 
once s a i d , a weak and f r a g i l e State incapable of ensuring the well-being of 
a l l members of soc i e t y . 

17. Mr. OMAR (Observer f o r the Libyan Arab Jamahiriya) f e l t that the problem 
created by the pu b l i c a t i o n of the "Satanic Verses" had to be brought before 
the United Nations, and i n p a r t i c u l a r the Commission. His delegation would 
nevertheless have preferred the matter to be discussed imder an agenda item 
other than item 22. It should be emphasized that Islam was e s s e n t i a l l y a 
r e l i g i o n of tolerance by v i r t u e of i t s very o r i g i n , since i t had originated i n 
a region which had also given r i s e to two other major r e l i g i o n s . Some people 
had invoked the r i g h t to freedom of thought and expression with respect to the 
pub l i c a t i o n of the "Satanic Verses" but without taking into account the 
fee l i n g s of m i l l i o n s of Muslims. Freedom of opinion and expression was not an 
absolute freedom e x i s t i n g i n a vacuum and had to be considered from the 
l e g i s l a t i v e and p r a c t i c a l standpoint. 

18. The Universal Declaration of Human Rights guaranteed that freedom i n 
a r t i c l e 19, but a r t i c l e 29 provided a general framework f o r i t s exercise which 
took into account other requirements, such as the freedom of others and public 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 6 

order. He r e c a l l e d also that a r t i c l e 20, paragraph 2 of the International 
Covenant on C i v i l eind P o l i t i c a l Rights stated that "any advocacy of n a t i o n a l , 
r a c i a l or r e l i g i o u s hatred that constitutes incitement to d i s c r i m i n a t i o n , 
h o s t i l i t y or violence s h a l l be prohibited by law". 

19. The general p r i n c i p l e s of law imposed l i m i t a t i o n s on freedom of opinion 
and expression, even i n the most l i b e r a l States; thus, some States had 
prohibited the p u b l i c a t i o n of books dealing with questions of s e c u r i t y or 
espionage. Freedom of expression, therefore, could not be t o t a l . Some people 
had accused the Muslims who protested against the p u b l i c a t i o n of the "Satanic 
Verses" of intolerance, but he wondered which side was r e a l l y showing 
intolerance. The "Satanic Verses" could not be regarded as an objective and 
s c i e n t i f i c work. I t was known that the l i f e of the prophet Mahomet had been 
recorded with great p r e c i s i o n . The book i n question, however, did not take 
account of that h i s t o r i c a l b a s i s . On the contrary, i t contained i n s u l t s 
against the Prophet, and i t s obscenity went beyond anything that had hitherto 
been published against Islam. It was f o r that reason that a l l the Islamic 
communities had rejected i t . 

20. No one was forced to adhere to Islam, but anyone who did must not i n s u l t 
that r e l i g i o n and i t s Prophet. Furthermore, no one could i n s u l t Muslims 
without expecting a reaction on t h e i r part. Intolerance, therefore, was being 
shown by those who i n s u l t e d Islam. It was s i g n i f i c a n t i n that regard that the 
"Satanic Verses" had been defended before the Commission by the representative 
of a non-governmental organization (NGO) whose h o s t i l i t y towards Islam and the 
Muslim countries was well known. 

21. The i n t e r n a t i o n a l community, therefore, must now understand the danger of 
such a p u b l i c a t i o n . He noted that Canada had decided to p r o h i b i t the 
importation of copies of the book i n order to determine, f i r s t of a l l , whether 
or not i t was i n s u l t i n g ; he hoped that other countries would act i n the same 
way. It might be r e c a l l e d i n that regard that not very long ago Muslims had 
expressed t h e i r s o l i d a r i t y with Christians shocked by the showing of a f i l m 
i n s u l t i n g to Jesus C h r i s t . Now, at the time of the p u b l i c a t i o n of a book l i k e 
the "Satanic Verses", punishable under the Shariah. any support f o r that 
p u b l i c a t i o n must be understood as a manifestation of intolerance towards 
Islam. He would l i k e to see the truth on that matter r e f l e c t e d i n the 
documents of the Commission. 

CONSIDERATION OF THE REPORT OF THE MISSION WHICH TOOK PLACE IN CUBA IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH COMMISSION DECISION 1988/106 (agenda item 11 b i s ) 
(E/CN.4/1989/46 and C o r r . l ) 

22. Mr. SENE (Chairman of the Group which had v i s i t e d Cuba, i n accordance with 
Commission decision 1988/106) said that by i t s consensus decision the 
Commission on Human Rights, having regard to the i n v i t a t i o n of the Government 
of Cuba, had appointed i t s Chairman and f i v e of i t s members representing the 
regional groups to v i s i t Cuba i n order to observe the human r i g h t s s i t u a t i o n . 
In addition to Mr. Sene himself. Ambassador of Senegal and Chairman of the 
f o r t y - f o u r t h session of the Commission, the Group had comprised Mrs. Attah, 
Ambassador of N i g e r i a , representing A f r i c a ; Mr. Dichev, Ambassador of 
Bulgaria, representing Eastern Europe; Mr. Ingles, Under-Secretary f o r Foreign 
A f f a i r s of the P h i l i p p i n e s , representing A s i a ; Mr. L i l l i s , Ambassador of 
Ireland, representing Western Europe and North America; and Mr. Rivas Posada, 
Ambassador of Colombia, representing L a t i n America. 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 7 

23. The Group had c a r r i e d out i t s mandate with humility, i n keeping with the 
s p i r i t of consensus that had been the basis of Commission decision 1988/106. 
It had constituted an o r i g i n a l but coherent mechanism whose action had marked 
a new stage i n the m u l t i l a t e r a l dialogue on human r i g h t s . 

24. The report issued as document E/CN.4/1989/46, which contained 4 chapters 
and 33 annexes, was voluminous; i t was the sum of a vast amount of 
documentation and information which i t had been necessary to s i f t , analyse and 
consolidate on the basis of consensus. The f i r s t chapter reviewed the 
preliminary contacts he had had, as Chairman of the Group, e s p e c i a l l y those 
with Mr. Lechuga, Permanent Representative of Cuba to the United Nations 
O f f i c e at Geneva, and with Mr. Raul Roa Kouri, Deputy Minis t e r f o r External 
Relations of Cuba. Non-governmental organizations, including some based i n 
Miami or Madrid, one diplomatic mission and a number of private i n d i v i d u a l s 
had submitted a vast amoxrnt of documentation, notably concerning i n d i v i d u a l 
cases (see annexes III and V). With regard to the i n d i v i d u a l cases, he had 
made humanitarian approaches to the Government of Cuba through i t s Permanent 
Representative at Geneva and favourable consideration had been given to 
several cases, as indicated i n the annexes. 

25. The Group had also received useful documents from the Permanent Mission 
of Cuba: the C o n s t i t u t i o n , Penal Code (annexes XIX and XX), codes of 
procedure and a l i s t of i n t e r n a t i o n a l human r i g h t s instruments r a t i f i e d by 
Cuba. At the f i r s t meeting of the Group, a l l the documentation had been 
examined and some of i t had been transmitted to the Government of Cuba for 
opinion, together with a l i s t of 2,000 i n d i v i d u a l cases. The Group had also 
sent the Government of Cuba a communiqué f o r p u b l i c a t i o n to annoxmce i t s v i s i t 
(see annex V). 

26. At i t s second meeting, from 12 to 15 September 1988, the Group had had a 
meeting with Cuba's Deputy Minis t e r f o r External Relations and had heard 
statements by representatives of Amnesty International and the New York C i t y 
Bar Association on the working v i s i t s to Cuba by those two NGOs. He (Mr. Sene) 
had, furthermore, been received by the President of ICRC, who had v i s i t e d Cuba. 
The Group had also gathered testimony from representatives of the Task Force 
for Human Rights, based i n Miami, the a s s o c i a t i o n Women fo r Human Rights Inc., 
and the Spanish section of the Cuban Committee f o r Human Rights, based i n 
Madrid. 

27. At the very beginning of i t s v i s i t , which had taken place 
from 16 to 25 September, the Group had met Mr. Isidoro Malmierca, Minis t e r for 
External Relations, i n the afternoon following i t s a r r i v a l . During the v i s i t , 
the Group had met Mr. F i d e l Castro, President of the Council of State, and had 
been received by the Vice-President, Mr. Carlos Rafael Rodriguez, as well as 
by other senior o f f i c i a l s , including the M i n i s t e r f o r Foreign Relations, the 
Min i s t e r of the I n t e r i o r , the M i n i s t e r of Health, the M i n i s t e r of Education, 
the M i n i s t e r of J u s t i c e , the M i n i s t e r of Higher Education and t h e i r p r i n c i p a l 
advisers. The Group had also had a long meeting with the Secretary-General of 
the National Assembly of People's Power, together with several members of the 
L e g i s l a t u r e . It had also met the President and members of the National 
Committee of Workers and S o c i a l Security and the Chairman of the I n s t i t u t o 
( O f f i c e ) of Housing. It had, moreover, been received by the senior o f f i c i a l s 
of the Central Committee of the Cuban Communist Party responsible f o r 
information and r e l i g i o u s a f f a i r s , and by o f f i c i a l s of the Committees for the 
Defence of the Revolution. It had then exchanged views with j o u r n a l i s t s and 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 8 

heads of the information media. It had also met members of the Union of 
J u r i s t s , the Union of Writers and A r t i s t s , the Federation of Students and 
the Union of Communist Youth. 

28. The Group had t r a v e l l e d to prisons, where i t had met detainees, and had 
v i s i t e d schools and h o s p i t a l s . In the province of Pinar del Rio, i t had met 
di r e c t o r s of a g r i c u l t u r a l co-operatives and s o c i a l welfare i n s t i t u t i o n s , as 
well as members of the Federation of Cuban Women. It had been received by 
more than 30 representatives of NGOs, i n p a r t i c u l a r the Cuban Committee f o r 
Human Rights, the Commission for Human Rights and National Reconstruction, 
the A l l i e d Hiunan Rights and National R e c o n c i l i a t i o n Organizations, the 
Naturista Vida Association and the Pro-Arte Libre A s s o c i a t i o n . It had had 
meetings with the Cuban Ecumenical Coimcil and the Catholic Episcopal 
Conference. L a s t l y , i t had gathered testimony from 87 persons d i r e c t l y and 
from another 1,600 persons through the s e c r e t a r i a t . The l i s t of those 
persons, together with the al l e g a t i o n s and complaints submitted, were to be 
found i n annex VII. 

29. It could therefore be seen that the Group, i n co-operation with the 
Government and people of Cuba, had been able to carry out i t s task i n a l l the 
s o c i o - c u l t u r a l sectors of nationa l l i f e and had thus been able to observe the 
implementation of human ri g h t s i n Cuba. The Group had taken the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights as i t s terms of reference, and i n that l i g h t had 
begun by analysing the c o n s t i t u t i o n a l and l e g i s l a t i v e aspects of the l e g a l 
standards applied i n Cuba. Chapter II of i t s report contained the questions 
which had been ra i s e d with the Government of Cuba concerning the provisions of 
the Constitution and Penal Code (see also annexes XVI, XIX and XX). That 
chapter also reproduced the substantive points made by Cuba's Minist e r of 
J u s t i c e . The M i n i s t e r had stated i n p a r t i c u l a r that the Cuban l e g a l system 
was based on a Constitution adopted by referendum on 15 February 1976 with the 
support of 97.2 per cent of the 5,700,000 voters. 

30. He did not wish to deal with matters of substance i n his introduction, 
nor with the h i s t o r i c a l and g e o p o l i t i c a l background, and would confine himself 
to the report, which was a synthesis document c a r e f u l l y prepared to achieve 
consensus, and would simply draw att e n t i o n to i t s main features. 

31. F i r s t , he wished to enumerate the questions on which the Cuban a u t h o r i t i e s 
had given r e p l i e s , i n d i c a t i n g the corresponding a r t i c l e s of the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights: administration of j u s t i c e ( a r t i c l e 10); freedom 
of movement and r i g h t of asylum ( a r t i c l e s 13 and 14); r i g h t of c i t i z e n s h i p 
( a r t i c l e 15); r e l i g i o u s freedom, freedom of opinion and expression and of the 
press ( a r t i c l e s 2, 18 and 19); freedom of assembly, expression and association 

. ( a r t i c l e 20); r i g h t to education ( a r t i c l e 26); and l i m i t a t i o n of ri g h t s and 
freedoms by the Constitution ( a r t i c l e s 29 and 30). 

32. Annex XVII reproduced the opinions which the l e g a l section of the Cuban 
Committee f o r Human Rights had communicated i n w r i t i n g with regard to the 
Constit u t i o n and the Penal Code. 

33. In Chapter III of the report, which concerned c i v i l and p o l i t i c a l r i g h t s , 
the Group reported o f f i c i a l comments on the following r i g h t s and freedoms 
(with the corresponding a r t i c l e s of the Universal Declaration): r i g h t to l i f e 
( a r t i c l e 3); r i g h t to physical i n t e g r i t y ( a r t i c l e 5); r i g h t to privacy 
( a r t i c l e 12); freedom to enter and leave the country of which one i s a 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 9 

n a t i o n a l ( a r t i c l e 13, para. 2); freedom of conscience and r e l i g i o n 
( a r t i c l e 18); freedom of opinion and expression, including freedom of 
information ( a r t i c l e 19); freedom of assembly and a s s o c i a t i o n , including 
trade union freedom ( a r t i c l e 20); and r i g h t to p o l i t i c a l p a r t i c i p a t i o n 
( a r t i c l e 21). Chapter III concluded with an examination of j u d i c i a l 
protection i n respect of the lawfulness of administrative or c o n s t i t u t i o n a l 
a cts. Chapter IV dealt with economic, s o c i a l and c u l t u r a l r i g h t s , and i n 
p a r t i c u l a r with the s o c i a l s e c u r i t y system ( a r t i c l e s 22, 23 and 24 of the 
Universal Declaration), health ( a r t i c l e 25) and education ( a r t i c l e 26). 

34. He thanked the Government and the people of Cuba f o r t h e i r valuable 
co-operation with the Group i n the f u l f i l m e n t of i t s mandate. He also 
expressed gratitude to the Secretary-General of the United Nations, who had 
followed the Group's mission with i n t e r e s t and a t t e n t i o n , a s s i s t e d by the 
Under-Secretary-General for Htrnian Rights and by the S e c r e t a r i a t s t a f f who had 
accompanied the Group and worked to the l i m i t of t h e i r a b i l i t y . The Group 
f e l t that i t was time to increase the resources of the Centre for Human Rights 
to enable i t to execute i t s vast programme for the protection and promotion of 
human r i g h t s . 

35. One of the report's conclusions was that the s p i r i t of i n t e r n a t i o n a l 
co-operation which had led to decision 1988/106 had been a c t i v e l y maintained 
between the Group and the Cuban a u t h o r i t i e s during the mission and had enabled 
a consensus to be preseirved for the presentation of the report. He hoped that 
the s p i r i t of m u l t i l a t e r a l co-operation, mutual respect, comprehension and 
tolerance which had i n s p i r e d the Group would be preserved i n the discussion 
now beginning. 

36. L a s t l y , the Group hoped i t had made a contribution to the action c a r r i e d 
out by the United Nations, i n the Americas and elsewhere i n the world to 
e s t a b l i s h peace and brotherhood, respect f o r human d i g n i t y and b e t t e r 
conditions of l i f e f o r men, women and c h i l d r e n of every race, colour, o r i g i n 
and r e l i g i o n . 

37. Mr. ROA KOURI (Cuba), presenting his delegation's comments on the report 
of the mission which had taken place i n Cuba i n accordance with Commission 
decision 1988/106 (E/CN.4/1989/46), pointed out f i r s t of a l l that, since the 
trivmiph of the Cuban Revolution on 1 January 1959, his coxintry had been the 
target of h o s t i l i t y , pressure and aggression from eight successive 
United States Governments, which had sought to i s o l a t e Cuba d i p l o m a t i c a l l y , 
s t i f l e i t economically and rob i t of i t s best s p e c i a l i s t s (more than 
3,000 doctors and thousands of technicians had l e f t the country as a r e s u l t ) . 
Then there had been the a i r , sea and land attack on Playa Girón, the bombing 
of the Havana a i r p o r t s by United States planes with Cuban markings and the 
attempt to assassinate President F i d e l Castro and other leaders. A 
large-scale invasion of Cuba by United States forces had f i n a l l y aborted at 
the time of the October 1962 c r i s i s and since then Cuba had been subjected to 
an economic blockade which was an obstacle to free trade with the 
United States, as well as with i t s a l l i e s . As indicated i n annex XVIII of the 
report tmder consideration, the Cuban economy had also been the v i c t i m of 
p a r t i c u l a r l y immoral b a c t e r i o l o g i c a l aggression by the United States which had 
resulted i n loss of hvrnian l i f e and serious damage. 



E/CN.A/1989/SR.41 
page 10 

38. During the f i r s t years of the Reagan Administration, the m i l i t a r y threat 
had resurfaced; President Reagan had sought to tighten the economic blockade, 
by e x e r c i s i n g pressure on the United States' a l l i e s , to l i m i t contacts of any 
kind with Cuba and to launch a campaign of defamation against that country and 
the leaders of the Revolution by accusing them of being involved i n drug 
t r a f f i c k i n g and of committing mass and flagr a n t v i o l a t i o n s of human r i g h t s . 
Never had such a m i l i t a r i l y and economically powerful country as the 
United States been seen to make such an a l l - o u t e f f o r t to crush and denigrate 
one nation. For more than four years, that powerful neighbour had been 
heaping abuse on the Cuban Revolution as part of a massive propaganda campaign 
involving the creation i n L a t i n America and Europe of s o - c a l l e d groups f o r the 
protection of human ri g h t s i n Cuba, the p u b l i c a t i o n of a r t i c l e s and 
"information" i n c o n t r o l l e d North American and i n t e r n a t i o n a l press organs, 
declarations by United States leaders, the promotion of anti-Cuban motions i n 
the parliaments of other countries and the use of counter-revolutionary and 
a n t i - s o c i a l i s t elements i n Cuba i t s e l f to foment acts of provocation and 
create disorder. 

39. During the months preceding the a r r i v a l of the Commission's mission to 
Cuba, those a c t i v i t i e s had been stepped up: every day and at any time, both 
before the mission's a r r i v a l and during i t s stay, various radio stations 
located i n United States t e r r i t o r y but e a s i l y picked up i n Cuba had been 
c a l l i n g on Cubans to meet the mission at the Havana a i r p o r t , hold public 
demonstrations to show t h e i r "discontent" and submit complaints about the 
s i t u a t i o n of "thousands of p o l i t i c a l prisoners" by telephoning UNDP - i n other 
words, to execute the plan developed by the CIA's psychological warfare 
s p e c i a l i s t s aimed at " d e s t a b i l i z i n g and crushing" the Revolution. The 
anti-Cuban campaign had cost United States taxpayers m i l l i o n s of d o l l a r s . 

40. With the deployment of that force, i t was hardly s u r p r i s i n g that the 
United States had succeeded i n mobilizing a small group of persons ready to 
pour out an incessant stream of l i e s to the members of the mission, gross 
slanders which could already be found i n the*"white paper" issued by the State 
Department before the invasion of Playa Girón and which had been repeated, f o r 
example, i n the Commission by United States Ambassador Vernon Walters 
i n 1988. Those people claimed that the mission chaired by Mr. Sene had not 
been i n v i t e d by the Government of Cuba but had been sent thanks to the e f f o r t s 
of the United States, and that the mission's task had been to " i n v e s t i g a t e " 
and not observe the human ri g h t s s i t u a t i o n i n Cuba. However, i n the actual 
terms of i t s decision 1988/106, the Commission had "decided to accept the 
i n v i t a t i o n " of the Government of Cuba. 

41. Moreover, i n i t s report, the mission completely disproved the accusations 
of Ambassador Vernon Walters that torture and clandestine executions were 
continuing i n Cuba and that there were between 10,000 and 15,000 p o l i t i c a l 
prisoners i n prisons and labour camps. On the contrary, the mission had 
received r e l i a b l e information from the a u t h o r i t i e s and f o r i n t e l l e c t u a l s , 
workers and the population i n general that i n Cuba today there were no missing 
persons, no cases of torture or clandestine execution, no "death squads", and 
no p o l i t i c a l repression with dogs, batons or tear gas, as used i n f a c t by many 
so- c a l l e d "democracies" i n the West. According to the information provided by 
the population, the treatment of prisoners was anything but " c r u e l , 
humiliating or degrading" and, i n general, Cuban prisons met the minimum 
standards required of penitentiary establishments. 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 11 

42. In Jime 1988, an International Committee of the Red Cross (ICRC) team had 
v i s i t e d Cuba f o r one month, during which time i t had without d i f f i c u l t y 
interviewed 406 persons detained for offences against the s e c u r i t y of the 
State and had v i s i t e d 13 prisons throughout the country. The number of 
persons detained f o r counter-revolutionary offences, which had stood at 458 i n 
March 1988, was now le s s than 100, and not 10,000 as had been claimed at a 
recent press conference by the representative of the united States. 

43. The unprecedented nature of the Commission's mission to Cuba should be 
emphasized. The Government of Cuba had i n f a c t requested a mission comprising 
the Chairman of the Commission and f i v e members, one from each of the regional 
groups; that mission had been c a r e f u l l y prepared with the f u l l co-operation of 
the Cuban Government; i t had been announced i n advemce to the e n t i r e 
population, which had been given the telephone numbers on which UNDP could be 
c a l l e d to request interviews or to supply information; the stay of the members 
of the Commission had been extended from 5 to 10 days, and they had enjoyed 
a l l the f a c i l i t i e s and a l l the necessary guarantees to v i s i t the places and 
prisons and meet the persons they had wished; and, l a s t l y , the Cuban 
a u t h o r i t i e s had allowed the mission to study c l o s e l y the Constitution and 
domestic laws i n conditions which had c e r t a i n l y not been enjoyed by any 
s p e c i a l rapporteur to date. In f a c t , Cuba had inaugurated a new form of 
m u l t i l a t e r a l co-operation i n the f i e l d of human ri g h t s which should be 
considered by other States members as a new means of contributing to the 
promotion of those r i g h t s . 

44. In h i s delegation's view, the weakness of the report was that the mission 
had gathered testimony and a l l e g a t i o n s concerning alleged fa c t s dating back 
20 or 30 years, an approach that was not only contrary to the s p i r i t and 
l e t t e r of the mandate set out i n decision 1988/106 (to observe the human 
rig h t s s i t u a t i o n during the mission's stay) but also implied a h i s t o r i c a l 
judgement on the p o l i t i c a l and s o c i a l process, something which no Government 
could accept. It should also be pointed out that the mission had received 
information i n Geneva from organizations based i n Miami (United States of 
America), Madrid (Spain), the United Kingdom and Geneva i t s e l f . That did not 
appear to be consistent with the mandate which the mission had received to 
observe the s i t u a t i o n l o c a l l y . Yet that mandate had been c l e a r l y stated on 
several occasions by the Government of Cuba and had been accepted by the 
Chairman of the Commission during the meeting held between the members of the 
mission and the Cuban M i n i s t e r f o r External Relations. Furthermore, his 
delegation wished to emphasize the undeniable fa c t that, i n 65.7 per cent of 
cases, testimony r e l a t i n g to alleged v i o l a t i o n s of human r i g h t s dealt 
e x c l u s i v e l y with problems of entering or leaving the country. 

45. The Group v i s i t i n g Cuba had given the Cuban a u t h o r i t i e s a comprehensive 
l i s t , drawn up by the S e c r e t a r i a t , concerning a l l e g a t i o n s made by 
1,684 persons; however, since the names of 47 persons appeared twice, a t o t a l 
of 1,637 persons were ulimately concerned, among whom there were members 
of 49 f a m i l i e s whose cases had been considered as humanitarian ones by the 
Chairman of the Group and had been resolved i n the l e t t e r from Cuba's Minis t e r 
of the I n t e r i o r dated 14 November 1988 (see annex IX to the r e p o r t ) . 
Consequently, the questions raised i n the body of the report a c t u a l l y 
concerned 1,588 persons. L a s t l y , i t should be pointed out that annex VII, 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 12 

which contained the l i s t of " a l l e g a t i o n s " presented by "more than 
1,600 persons" - according to the terms of the report - merely repeated what 
was already to be fotind i n the body of the report i t s e l f and added nothing 
new. Therefore, of the 325 pages of annexes i n the Spanish version of the 
report, there were only 86 pages concerning supposed " v i o l a t i o n s " , the great 
majority of which r e l a t e d to the r i g h t to leave or return to the country and 
also appeared i n the report i t s e l f . 

46. The representative of the United States had recently claimed that the 
Government of Cuba had c a r r i e d out r e p r i s a l s against some persons simply 
because they had met the members of the Group during i t s stay. However, 
nothing could be further from r e a l i t y or from the ha b i t i i a l p r a c t i c e of the 
Cuban Revolution. He indicated the names of the persons arrested i n Cuba 
al l e g e d l y f o r purposes of r e p r i s a l s and reasons f o r t h e i r a r r e s t . 
Gustavo Venta Pérez had been arrested on 22 September 1988 f o r d i s t u r b i n g the 
peace near the Hotel Commodore and f o r r e s i s t i n g a uthority; the competent 
court had sentenced him to s i x months' imprisonment (case No. 2 333 of 1988). 
Francisco Benitez Ferrer had attacked a p o l i c e o f f i c e r on 27 September 1988 
i n front of the Hotel Commodore and had been sentenced to s i x months of 
imprisonment (case No. 3 063 of 1988). His brother Alejandro Benitez Ferrer 
had been sentenced f o r the same offence. Lázaro Linares Etchevarria, who had 
been sentenced f o r a misdemeanour and then released on 22 August 1988, had 
caused a serious breach of the peace on 28 September 988 and the decision 
regarding h i s release had been reversed by the same court. 

47. On 19 October 1988, several provocateurs had p h y s i c a l l y and v e r b a l l y 
attacked passers-by attempting to r e s t r a i n them and had been sentenced to 
terms of imprisonment ranging from one year to s i x months. The persons 
concerned were members of the s o - c a l l e d "Asociación Pro Arte L i b r e " group, 
although none were well-known a r t i s t s , and belonged to the small group led by 
Ricardo B o f i l . 

48. Other members o f " P r o Arte L i b r e " had devised a provocation involving the 
organization of a s o - c a l l e d a r t e x h i b i t i o n , which had l a t e r been the target of 
an armed attack orchestrated by themselves, the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f or which had 
then been l a i d on the Cuban a u t h o r i t i e s . A f t e r a preliminary inquiry, 
f i v e persons had been arrested between 18 and 20 October 1988 and had been 
found i n possession of arms which, according to t h e i r admissions, they had 
intended to use f o r that "self-aggression". A l l , moreover, had previously 
served prison sentences f o r various offences. Investigation and committal 
proceedings were now i n progress and the persons concerned were to appear 
before the competent court. Tania Diaz Castro, the ex-wife of a 
counter-revolutionary prisoner and s e l f - s t y l e d "objector", had gone to the 
Combinado del Este prison on 29 November 1988 supposedly to v i s i t another 
counter-revolutionary prisoner with whom she had a r e l a t i o n s h i p . Being 
neither the wife of the former nor having any conjugal r e l a t i o n s h i p with the 
l a t t e r , she had been refused entry to the penitentiary establishment and, 
together with other members of her family, had attacked a member of the prison 
s t a f f , who had been thrown to the ground and beaten. Tania Diaz Castro had 
been sentenced to deprivation of l i b e r t y f o r one year (case No. 1 346 
of 1988). It was therefore c l e a r that none of those persons had been 
subjected to r e p r i s a l s f o r having met the members of the Commission's 
mission. It should be pointed out, however, that the fa c t of having met the 
Group di d not guarantee the immunity of any person or exempt him from the 
requirement to abide by the law. 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 13 

49. He then provided c l a r i f i c a t i o n of c e r t a i n passages i n the report 
(E/CN.4/1989/46) which, i n h i s view, were e i t h e r confused or inexact. F i r s t , 
i t was stated i n paragraph 69 that the Group had informed the Cuban 
a u t h o r i t i e s that i t wished to v i s i t the prisons of E l Morro, La Cabana and 
Quivicán and that the M i n i s t e r f o r External Relations had t o l d i t that the 
"three prisons were closed". His delegation, l i k e the S e c r e t a r i a t , possessed 
a recording of that conversation and wished to indicate that the M i n i s t e r had 
said that the prisons of E l Morro and La Cabana were " t o u r i s t centres" and not 
that they had been closed. The Secretariat o f f i c i a l who had a r r i v e d at Havana 
before the mission had, furthermore, corroborated that statement. The 
M i n i s t e r had stated that he had not received requests to v i s i t the detention 
centre of V i l l a Marista but the prison of Quivicán. The mission had f i n a l l y 
decided to v i s i t V i l l a Marista, as indicated i n the report, but i t had not 
included Quivicán i n i t s programme. At any rate, the Cuban a u t h o r i t i e s had 
c l e a r l y indicated to the mission that i t could go to the prisons and places i t 
had wished to see. 

50. Second, i n paragraph 33, the M i n i s t e r of J u s t i c e was reported to have 
said that: "... the harshness and s e v e r i t y of penalties had been maintained 
as a deterrent, and that i t was not a l e g a l phenomenon but rather a p o l i t i c a l 
p o s i t i o n " . It should be made cl e a r that the M i n i s t e r had meant that the 
s e v e r i t y of penalties f o r offences against the s e c u r i t y of the State had been 
due to the p o l i t i c a l considerations explained i n the same paragraph 33, which 
i n no way s i g n i f i e d that the said penalties were applied unlawfully. In f a c t , 
the offenders i n question had been t r i e d by competent courts, i n accordance 
with procedures established by law and i n s t r i c t compliance with the p r i n c i p l e 
that there could be no offence or penalty except as already l a i d down by law. 

51. He noted that the changes made to the Penal Code of 1979, as incorporated 
i n the new Code approved by the National Assembly i n 1987, covered more than 
62 per cent of the a r t i c l e s of the previous code and s i g n i f i c a n t l y reduced the 
penalties l a i d down, notably by providing a l t e r n a t i v e s to deprivation of 
l i b e r t y f o r 80 per cent of offences. The new Penal Code was the r e s u l t of the 
new economic, p o l i t i c a l and s o c i a l conditions that had been created i n Cuba, 
as well as of the l e g a l work c a r r i e d out over a period of 10 years, and not 
the r e s u l t of any outside pressure or of the Group's v i s i t . 

52. Paragraph 59 of the report noted b r i e f l y the reply given by the Minister 
of J u s t i c e to the questions raised by the Group regarding the Associations Act 
of 1986. In that regard, i t should be noted to note that i n Cuba the r i g h t of 
a s s o c i a t i o n had previously been governed, from November 1976, by 
Act No. 1 320, which had been replaced by the current Act No. 54 of December 
1985. Analysis of that Act and of i t s rules of a p p l i c a t i o n , as set f o r t h i n 
decision No. 53 of the M i n i s t e r of J u s t i c e , provided a c l e a r answer to the 
Group's questions: freedom of assembly, demonstration and a s s o c i a t i o n was not 
confined to that exercised within the framework of mass organizations and 
s o c i a l organizations governed by the C o n s t i t u t i o n , since Act No. 54 s t i p u l a t e d 
that such organizations were not covered by i t s provisions and concerned the 
action of any a s s o c i a t i o n that might be constituted i n the public i n t e r e s t . 
An a s s o c i a t i o n must obtain the approval of the head of the department 
responsible f o r associations i n the M i n i s t r y of J u s t i c e , and the Act, as well 
as i t s rules of a p p l i c a t i o n , s p e c i f i e d the cases i n which approval could be 
refused, i . e . almost e x c l u s i v e l y when the f o r m a l i t i e s were not complied with. 
In f a c t , a r t i c l e 5 of the Act authorized the establishment of associations 
comprising only 30 members and provided that the M i n i s t e r could authorize 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 14 

associations with even fewer members. In the event of a r e f u s a l , the persons 
concerned could appeal to the M i n i s t e r of J u s t i c e and, i f he rendered a 
negative d e c i s i o n , they could a v a i l themselves of the normal j u d i c i a l remedies 
( a r t i c l e 91 of the regulations of Act No. 54). It could therefore be said ' 
that the Associations Act offered very broad scope, and a large number of 
associations had been constituted i n Cuba under i t s p r o v i s i o n s . 

53. Paragraph 122 of the report svmmiarized c e r t a i n remarks by a 
representative of the "Cuban Committee f o r Human Rights" which c a l l e d f o r 
c l a r i f i c a t i o n . The absence of a t r i b u n a l of c o n s t i t u t i o n a l guarantees of the 
kind that had existed before the revolution did not mean, as the "witness" 
claimed, that the ri g h t s and freedoms proclaimed i n the Consti t u t i o n were not 
properly guaranteed. That "witness" did not appear to know the most 
elementary p r i n c i p l e s of the doctrine on that subject or the Cuban l e g a l 
system. The c o n s t i t u t i o n a l protection afforded by j u d i c i a l machinery - such 
as the tr i b u n a l s - of c o n s t i t u t i o n a l guarantees was only one of the 
universally-accepted ways of guaranteeing the primacy of the Cons t i t u t i o n . 
Others included the ordinary j u d i c i a l channels, whether or not including 
s p e c i a l remedies, the i n s t i t u t i o n of the ombudsman, as i n the Nordic 
countries, or that of the procurator as i n the s o c i a l i s t countries. In Cuba, 
remedies were a v a i l a b l e through the l e g i s l a t i v e organ, governed by the 
regulations of the National Assembly of People's Power, a fa c t which the 
"witness" c i t e d d i d not seem to know. 

54. The same person stated that, i n view of a r t i c l e s 105, 160, 161, 245 
and 248 (of the Penal Code), there could be no f a i r and impartial j u d i c i a l 
proceedings i n Cuba. That suggested the existence of confusion between the 
Penal Code and the Penal Procedure Act. The a r t i c l e s of the Penal Procedure 
Act r e f e r r e d to s p e c i f i c a l l y guaranteed the l e g a l i t y and fai r n e s s of 
proceedings. A r t i c l e 105 stated that the preparatory phase of penal 
proceedings were the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of the Attorney-General, to whom any 
po l i c e o f f i c i a l i n v e s t i g a t i n g a case was answerable; under a r t i c l e 160, an 
accused person appearing before an i n v e s t i g a t i n g o f f i c e r must provide h i s name 
and p a r t i c u l a r s , but a r t i c l e 161 offered an important safeguard and protected 
a fundamental r i g h t by s t i p u l a t i n g that no accused person was required to 
t e s t i f y against himself and that the in v e s t i g a t i n g o f f i c e r should inform him 
of what he was being accused, by whom, what charges were being preferred and 
that he had the r i g h t to indic a t e witnesses i n his defence. Thus, from the 
preparatory phase onwards, the p r i n c i p l e of the adversary system was respected. 
A r t i c l e 248 defined offences of extreme gr a v i t y f o r which condi t i o n a l release 
on b a i l could not be granted. However, the penal procedure regulations 
allowed f o r c o n d i t i o n a l release when there was no r i s k that the accused person 
might attempt to evade j u s t i c e and when the offence was not so serious that i t 
required soci e t y to protect i t s e l f by preventive means. 

55. L a s t l y , the same person declared that i n Cuba there were many 
r e s t r i c t i o n s on the exercise of the r i g h t to habeas corpus and referred to the 
provisions of a r t i c l e 467 of the Penal Procedure Act under which that remedy 
was not applicable i n cases of detention on the basis of a court order or 
arr e s t warrant. That was hardly s u r p r i s i n g since habeas corpus was an 
exceptional procedure which allowed f o r the release of a person detained i n 
v i o l a t i o n of the formal requirements and guarantees l a i d down by the 
Cons t i t u t i o n iind domestic l e g i s l a t i o n , and that procedure could not be used 
against the p r i n c i p l e of res j u d i c a t a or when imprisonment had been decided by 
a competent authority and i n accordance with procedure. 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 15 

56. According to paragraph 126 of the report, i t appeared from testimony 
received that the f a c t of requesting permission to leave the country was the 
main reason i n Cuba f o r loss of employment or employment category. His 
delegation wished to point out that i n the n o n - s o c i a l i s t cotmtries an employer 
could, e i t h e r l a w f u l l y or by unscrupulous means, dismiss or demote an employee 
who did not conform p e r f e c t l y to h i s l i m i t e d and narrow i n t e r e s t s , but that 
since those were acts by private i n d i v i d u a l s and not the State they were not 
treated i n those coimtries as v i o l a t i o n s of human r i g h t s . On the other hand 
in Cuba, where the only employer was the State, any a r b i t r a r y act committed i n 
the f i e l d of emplojnnent could be interpreted as a v i o l a t i o n of human r i g h t s . 
The p o s s i b i l i t y could not be excluded that some o f f i c i a l s might act unlawfully 
i n t h e i r capacity of employer and i n f r i n g e the r i g h t s of workers, yet such 
acts i n no way constituted o f f i c i a l State employment p o l i c y . Furthermore, the 
employee concerned was not deprived of remedies i n such cases and could a v a i l 
himself of the machinery l a i d down by law to enforce h i s r i g h t s and obtain 
compensation: labour coimcils and l e g a l a c t i o n i n the competent courts, 
including not only municipal people's courts but also the p r o v i n c i a l people's 
courts and the Supreme People's Court i n appeal cases. 

57. With regard to annex XVI of the report and questions dealing with 
i n d i v i d u a l l i b e r t y as well as a r t i c l e s 71, 73, 74 and 75 of the Penal Code, 
which defined the notion of "dangerous s t a t e " , he wished to point out f i r s t of 
a l l that s o - c a l l e d "pre-criminal s e c u r i t y measures" (annex XVI, (d)) were to 
be found i n the l e g i s l a t i o n of many countries and had already appeared i n 
Cuban domestic l e g i s l a t i o n of the 1930s, i . e . well before 1959. The Group 
sent by the Commission had asked what were the standards of the s o c i a l i s t 
morality that were departed from by a person who, through hi s conduct, was 
considered as demonstrating a dangerous s t a t e , and who was responsible f o r 
e s t a b l i s h i n g them. The precept i n question, l i k e a l l those of a l e g a l nature, 
must be interpreted i n the l i g h t , and as a function, of the other precepts 
preceding and following i t . It was therefore c l e a r from reading a r t i c l e 73 of 
the Penal Code that a dangerous state was produced by habitual drtmkenness, 
drug addiction or a n t i - s o c i a l behaviour. A n t i - s o c i a l behaviour, according to 
the same a r t i c l e , meant violence, provocation, disturbance of the peace, 
parasitism, e x p l o i t a t i o n of the work of others, etc. It was the l e g i s l a t o r 
and he alone who defined what Cubans understood by s o c i a l i s t morality and the 
rules of l i f e i n s o c i e t y , values which were protected i n the i n t e r e s t of a l l 
and f o r the protection of human r i g h t s . 

58. With regard to the offence of enemy propaganda, r e f e r r e d to by the Group 
of the Commission i n annex XVI, he indicated that the offence i n question 
consisted i n i n c i t i n g a c t i o n against the s o c i a l order, i n t e r n a t i o n a l 
s o l i d a r i t y or the s o c i a l i s t State, and not only i n taking a t h e o r e t i c a l 
p o s i t i o n against the State or the economic and s o c i a l order. Since i t raised 
the question as to whether the a r t i c l e of the Penal Code i n question could be 
used to prevent the free exercise of the r i g h t to c r i t i c i z e the Government, 
the Group showed that i t had not had the time to observe that c i t i z e n s were 
free to express t h e i r p o s i t i o n s i n the Cuban press, and d i d not f a i l to do so, 
thereby s i g n i f i c a n t l y enriching public discussion. Furthermore, Cubans had 
never been a people that could be reduced to s i l e n c e ; they were a people "with 
an i n c l i n a t i o n to protest", as the w r i t e r Eduardo Galeano had s a i d , and could 
i n no way be prevented from expressing any c r i t i c i s m they wished. Likewise, 
regarding the question raised by the Group on the subject of acts designed to 
cause alarm or spread f a l s e information l i k e l y to disrupt i n t e r n a t i o n a l peace 
or endanger the prestige of the Cuban State or i t s good r e l a t i o n s with another 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 16 

State, i t should be borne i n mind that a large number of penal codes contained 
s i m i l a r provisions, i n view of the need to prevent i r r e s p o n s i b l e or 
i l l - i n t e n t i o n e d acts that might threaten s o c i a l peace and peace i n general, 
e s p e c i a l l y by the dissemination of f a l s e information l i k e l y to endanger 
i n t e r n a t i o n a l co-existence. 

59. Annex XVII and, i n p a r t i c u l a r , the comments made by the Group of the 
Commission on a r t i c l e 16 of the Penal Code to the e f f e c t that criminal 
r e s p o n s i b i l i t y could be a t t r i b u t e d to someone not old enough to work or to 
contract marriage constituted a statement that was s u r p r i s i n g to say the 
l e a s t . In Cuba, a country where the r i g h t to vote was granted to every 
c i t i z e n above the age of 16, the penalties imposed under the Penal Code on 
persons aged 16 to 18 were reduced. The reasons f o r the l e g i s l a t i v e 
provisions under discussion were much more complex than those referred to i n 
annex XVII. There was no c o n t r a d i c t i o n , f o r example, between the age of 
criminal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y and the l e g a l working age. The l a t t e r was f i x e d i n 
Cuba at 17 years, because Cuban society had the means to ensure the 
maintenance and studies of any minor aged 17. 

60. According to paragraph 36 of the mission's report, the M i n i s t e r of 
J u s t i c e had stated that "the Party did not give orders to judges but, through 
the National Assembly, approved the laws which judges were required to 
enforce". However, the Minister had never made such a statement since, being 
f u l l y conversant with the provisions of the Constitution and domestic 
l e g i s l a t i o n , he knew p e r f e c t l y well that the Party played no r o l e i n the 
d r a f t i n g and approval of laws. 

61. In paragraph 68 of i t s report, the Group referred to a l e t t e r i n which i t 
had been claimed that 13 counter-revolutionaries had been executed by f i r i n g 
squad between 1980 and 1987. The Cuban Penal Code d i d , indeed, provide 
f o r c a p i t a l punishment f o r serious offences such as those committed by 
the 13 persons i n question, of whom two had led a counter-revolutionary 
group g u i l t y of numerous acts of sabotage and terrorism and had been found i n 
i l l e g a l possession of arms, munitions, uniforms and explosives, 3 had been 
found g u i l t y of acts of sabotage committed i n a g r o - i n d u s t r i a l centres, 5 had 
been former detainees under ordinary law who had been r e c r u i t e d i n the 
United States by the ALFA-66 t e r r o r i s t organization and given the task of 
carrying out acts of sabotage i n Cuba aimed at destroying centres of s t r a t e g i c 
importance to the n a t i o n a l economy, and 3 had led the group which had attacked 
the Mission of the Holy See i n Havana, kidnapped the p r i n c i p a l o f f i c i a l s of 
that Mission and k i l l e d one of the employees. The persons i n question, 
therefore, were i n no way conscientious objectors or p o l i t i c a l d i s s i d e n t s . If 
the M i n i s t e r of J u s t i c e , i n h i s o f f i c i a l meetings with the members of the 
Mission, had mentioned the existence of c e r t a i n "draconian" provisions i n the 
Cuban Penal Code, i t must be pointed out that the reason why those provisions 
had been adopted was that the methods employed by the i m p e r i a l i s t forces 
against the Revolution had l e f t no other a l t e r n a t i v e . 

,62. In order f o r the members of the Commission to know what " p o l i t i c a l 
p r i soners" had addressed l e t t e r s to the Group and to be informed as to the 
grounds on which those persons had been convicted,, i t was important to provide 
the following d e t a i l s : Ernesto Diaz Rodriguez had i n 1961 emigrated s e c r e t l y 
to the United States, where he had joined the ALFA-66 t e r r o r i s t organization; 
he had been sentenced to 15 years' imprisonment f o r h i s t e r r o r i s t a c t i v i t i e s ; 
Luis M. de l a Caridad Zúñiga Rey, who was attending the current session of the 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 17 

Commission under the name of Lino Hernández, had l e f t the country i l l e g a l l y 
and had collaborated, i n the United States, with counter-revolutionary 
organizations £ind with United States s p e c i a l s e r v i c e s ; he had been arrested i n 
July 1974 when attempting to smuggle two persons into the country and had been 
found i n possession of various arms and mvinitions; sentenced to 25 years' 
imprisonment (up to 1993), he had been released and had gone to the 
United States i n December 1988; Angel Arguelles Garrido had emigrated 
i l l e g a l l y i n 1963 and had collaborated with the MRR (Movimiento Recuperación 
Revolucionaria) counter-revoluntary orgeinization, which had trained him for 
mercenary a c t i v i t i e s against Cuba; arrested i n 1965 by the Navy, he had been 
sentenced to 25 years' imprisonment (up to 1990), but had been released and 
had emigrated i n January 1989; Guillermo Quintero Valdés, a member of the 
ALFA-66 organization, had admitted r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r sabotage on a coffee 
plantation and had been sentenced to a prison term of 15 years which would 
expire i n March 1997; Roberto Calveiro León had been sentenced to 30 years' 
imprisonment f o r attempting to h i j a c k a motor launch at the mouth of the 
River Canimar and causing the death of seven persons. Jacinto Fernández 
González had been sentenced to 20 years' imprisonment a f t e r being charged with 
espionage f o r a foreign power. Ramón Hernández Fáez had been sentenced to 
18 months' imprisonment f o r the offence of enemy propaganda, and had received 
a further sentence f o r armed robbery; Rafael Nunez Cuesta, a former o f f i c i a l 
of the M i n i s t r y of Foreign Trade, had been sentenced to 29 years' imprisonment 
(up to 2005) on being convicted of espionage f o r the CIA, but had been 
released i n 1988; B i l l y Sánchez Rodriguez, a common c r i m i n a l , had been 
arrested i n August 1988 when attempting to leave the country i l l e g a l l y ; he had 
not yet been t r i e d when the Group had v i s i t e d Cuba. 

63. The 22 prisoners r e f e r r e d to many times i n the report and known as 
"plantados" because they were refusing to comply with the regulations i n force 
i n the p e n i t e n t i a r y system were among the detainees who had been sentenced for 
attempting to assassinate President F i d e l Castro, as well as f o r espionage, 
sabotage, complicity i n assassination, offences against the i n t e g r i t y and 
s t a b i l i t y of the nation, i n f i l t r a t i o n of enemy agents, armed attacks, etc. 
Like a l l detainees, whether common-law criminals or covinter-revoluntaries, 
they had been treated properly i n the Cuban prisons and no medical expert, 
Cuban or f o r e i g n , had been able to prove that they had been subjected to 
tor t u r e , as had been reported to the Group. 

64. The Group, according to the report, had met seven organizations or 
a s s o c i a t i o n s , but the statements of s i x of them were dealt with i n only two 
paragraphs of the report, emphasis being given to statements by the "Pro 
Derechos Hiunanos" Committee, which claimed to have several thousand members 
but, i n r e a l i t y had s c a r c e l y more than 70. The "Pro Derechos Humanos y 
Reconciliación Nacional" Committee comprised between 35 and 40 members, and 
the head of the "Reconciliación Nacional Pro Derechos Humanos" Committee 
recognized that he was the only member of that organization. The a s s o c i a t i o n 
e n t i t l e d "Naturista Vida", which had i n f a c t become a r e a l estate operation, 
was composed s o l e l y of one couple and three other persons, and the "Pro Arte 
L i b r e " A s s o c i a t i o n , c o n s i s t i n g of 20 to 25 i n d i v i d u a l s , i n f a c t had no 
r e l a t i o n s h i p with the world of a r t . The Commission could therefore judge the 
unrepresentative nature of those groups as compared with the m i l l i o n s of 
Cubans who took part i n the s o c i a l , p o l i t i c a l , economic and c u l t u r a l work of 
the Revolution. 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 18 

65. Referring to the observiation made by the Group that there had been a 
considerable number of blacks detained i n the prison of Combinado del Este, he 
noted f i r s t of a l l that the Vice-President of the Council of State had also 
pointed out that, before the Revolution, r a c i a l d i s c r i m i n a t i o n i n the country 
had been p a r t i c u l a r l y i n t o l e r a b l e and that the Revolution had helped the 
blacks to free themselves from that d i s c r i m i n a t i o n and from poverty. On that 
question, the M i n i s t e r of the I n t e r i o r had t o l d the Group that the composition 
of the prison population had been 47 per cent white, 34 per cent black and 
19 per cent Mestizos, which showed that the Combinado del Este prison was not 
representative of the s i t u a t i o n nation-wide. However, the relevant 
s t a t i s t i c a l tables communicated to the Secr e t a r i a t d i d not appear at a l l i n 
the Group's report. Also on the subject of the r a c i a l problem, he pointed out 
not only that that problem did not a r i s e i n Cuba but that the Cuban people had 
not hesitated to s p i l l i t s blood to help the A f r i c a n peoples who were victims 
of apartheid and r a c i a l d i s c r i m i n a t i o n . 

66. With regard to the "pueblos cautivos" of Pinar del Rio, a l o c a l i t y which 
everyone i n Cuba except the covinter-revolutionaries c a l l e d Ciudad Sandino, i t 
should be made c l e a r that only one place was involved, since Briones Montoto 
and López Peña were simply d i s t r i c t s of Cuidad Sandino and that the Group 
could f r e e l y have v i s i t e d those places had i t had the time. Moreover, the 
inhabitants of Sandino belonged to f a m i l i e s which had been evacviated from 
regions forming part of the war zone i n the 1960s and which had supported the 
counter-revolution. The r e s t r i c t i o n s on the freedom of movement of the 
inhabitants had been l i f t e d several months previously, p r e c i s e l y because the 
majority of inhabitants had chosen to p a r t i c i p a t e i n the Revolution and 
because a large number of young people now belonged to the Commimist Youth 
Union of Cuba and were s a t i s f i e d with t h e i r new l i f e . As f o r other 
r e s t r i c t i o n s on freedom of movement, i t was true that they had been imposed i n 
the region of Guantánamo, but that was due to the presence of a United States 
naval base which since 1959 had provoked clashes i n which one Cuban border 
guard had l o s t h i s l i f e Furthermore, the o b l i g a t i o n to carry an i d e n t i t y card 
i n no way constituted an impediment to freedom of movement. As i n a great 
number of countries, c i t i z e n s were required to give n o t i f i c a t i o n of any change 
of address. Also, i f they took up residence elsewhere f o r more than 30 days, 
they must so inform the a u t h o r i t i e s . Those provisions were i n no way 
discriminatory and did not hamper freedom of movement. The f a c t of leaving 
the country i l l e g a l l y , which had been considered a counter-revolutionary 
offence i n the years of the worst confrontations with the United States, had 
since 1979 been treated as an ordinary offence vmder the Penal Code and as a 
breach of the foreign t r a v e l regulations that existed i n a l l countries. 

67. The Cuban a u t h o r i t i e s had c l e a r l y indicated that anyone who made the 
appropriate a p p l i c a t i o n was free to leave the country, subject to c e r t a i n 
p e r f e c t l y j u s t i f i e d r e s t r i c t i o n s that the Group noted i n i t s report. Other 
countries, however, must grant the necessary v i s a s . There had, moreover, been 
no expulsion procedure i n Cuba since 1959. If a couple l e f t the country, the 
chi l d r e n were allowed to keep their.home provided they had l i v e d there with 
t h e i r parents; i f not, the dwelling and f u r n i t u r e became the property of the 
State. If the dwelling i t s e l f belonged to the family, the chi l d r e n could 
r e t a i n ownership of i t . 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 19 

68. The statement i n paragraph 104 of the report that b e l i e v e r s could not be 
members of the Party and were thus excluded from the decision^naking process 
i n Cuban so c i e t y was e n t i r e l y f a l s e : any c i t i z e n , whatever h i s b e l i e f , 
enjoyed a l l c i v i l and p o l i t i c a l r i g h t s , could vote and stand f o r e l e c t i o n and 
thus p a r t i c i p a t e d i n decisionmaking, r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r which rested not with 
the Party but with the organs of people's power. 

69. With regard to the sentencing of a Jehovah's Witness, r e f e r r e d to i n 
paragraph 106 of the report, he pointed out that the court had t r i e d that 
person not because he had owned a copy of the Bible but because he had been 
found i n possession of the review "Atalaya", which had a counter-revolutionary 
bias and was banned i n Cuba. As i n a large number of countries, the sect had 
not been recognized by law since i t s adherents refused to comply with the 
l e g i s l a t i v e and c o n s t i t u t i o n a l provisions. On the other hand, copies of the 
Bible and various r e l i g i o u s p u b l i c a t i o n s , f o r example those of the 
Presbyterian Church, the Ecumenical Council of Cuba, the Episcopalian Church 
and the Ecvunenical Information Centre c i r c u l a t e d f r e e l y on the i s l a n d . In a 
l e t t e r dated 22 December 1988 addressed to President F i d e l Castro, the 
Archbishop of Havana had stated on behalf of a l l Cuban bishops that he had 
shared the hopes, d i f f i c u l t i e s and moments of enthusiasm experienced over the 
past 30 years, and that the Church had welcomed the progress achieved i n the 
f i e l d of education, health care and the struggle against poverty and 
i n j u s t i c e . He had added that the Church had welcomed the opportunities i t had 
now been given to provide s p i r i t u a l assistance to detainees and the f a c t that 
i t s r e l a t i o n s with the State had gradually become normalized. 

70. With regard to the assertions contained i n paragraph 111 of the report 
concerning the M i l i t a r y Production Assistance Units and the group c a l l e d 
"Microfracción", he noted that the s i t u a t i o n s described had occurred 20 years 
e a r l i e r and obviously could not have been observed by the Group. Furthermore, 
i t was i n c o r r e c t to state that Dr. Aramis Tabuada had died i n prison, since 
hi s own brothers, i n a l e t t e r addressed recently to Mr. Sene, maintained on 
the contrary that he had died i n h o s p i t a l , where he had received the necessary 
medical treatment, as the representative of Cuba himself had informed the 
Commission at i t s 1988 session. 

71. The claim i n paragraph 115 of the report that "on i d e o l o g i c a l , p o l i t i c a l 
or r e l i g i o u s grotmds" the creators and "exponents of Cuban culture i n e x i l e " 
had been marginalized was e n t i r e l y imfounded. A l l Catholic authors, whether 
or not members of the Communist Party, were free to publish t h e i r works. They 
were i n no way regarded as enemies of the Revolution and contributed greatly, 
l i k e the vast majority of the population, to b u i l d i n g the new s o c i e t y . 
S i m i l a r l y , Cuban a r t i s t s l i v i n g abroad had on many occasions been given the 
opportunity of e x h i b i t i n g t h e i r works i n the coxmtry and p e r s o n a l i t i e s of Cuban 
o r i g i n belonging to i m i v e r s i t y , l i t e r a r y and cinematographic c i r c l e s who l i v e d 
i n the United States were widely welcomed i n Cuba. They i n no way rejected 
t h e i r n a t i o n a l o r i g i n and were not considered as enemies of the Cuban people. 

72. With regard to freedom of education, the Commission might r e f e r to the 
statements of the f i v e members of the Executive Committee of the Ecumenical 
Coimcil, as reproduced i n the l a s t two sentences of paragraph 105 of the 
report. For lack of time, however, he would r e f r a i n from commenting on the 
a l l e g a t i o n s made by the representatives of the i n s i g n i f i c a n t movement of 
counter-revolutionaries with whom the Group had met or who had made 
submissions to the S e c r e t a r i a t . 



E/CN.4/1989/SR.41 
page 20 

73. Referring to the way i n which the Group had r e f e r r e d to the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights to formulate i t s comments on the s i t u a t i o n i n 
Cuba, he pointed out that i t was impossible to maintain a p r i o r i , given the 
d i v e r s i t y of the forms of e x i s t i n g s o c i a l organizations, that the State i n a 
S o c i a l i s t system n e c e s s a r i l y applied p r i n c i p l e s contrary to the u n i v e r s a l l y 
accepted standards of human r i g h t s . Indeed, the United Nations s p e c i f i c a l l y 
recognized the existence i n the world of d i f f e r e n t s o c i a l régimes and the 
p r i n c i p l e of the sovereign e q u a l i t y of a l l States. Furthermore, a r t i c l e 29 of 
the Universal Declaration s t i p u l a t e d that i n a d d i t i o n to i n d i v i d u a l r i g h t s 
there were corresponding duties to the community, given that everyone was 
subject only to such l i m i t a t i o n s as were determined by law. It was c l e a r , 
therefore, that the l e g i s l a t o r was not authorized to invoke the p r i n c i p l e of 
n a t i o n a l sovereignty i n order to e s t a b l i s h a régime contrary to the respect 
f o r human r i g h t s and to the p r i n c i p l e s of i n t e r n a t i o n a l law, as was the case 
i n South A f r i c a . Cuban l e g i s l a t i o n did not allow f o r s i t u a t i o n s of that 
kind. On the other hand, i t was consistent with the S o c i a l i s t i n s t i t u t i o n a l 
régime, which the population had chosen to adopt when i t had approved the 
Cons t i t u t i o n of 1976 by 97.7 per cent of votes. Cuban l e g i s l a t i o n included 
a l l the machinery required to ensure that any c i t i z e n considering himself 
prevented from e x e r c i s i n g h i s r i g h t s and fundamental freedoms could a v a i l 
himself of remedies and seek compensation; furthermore, at the i n t e r n a t i o n a l 
l e v e l , there existed procedures, to which Cuba adhered, f o r the protection of 
r i g h t s and freedoms. 

74. No one could therefore be misled into concluding, on the basis of the 
accusations gathered i n the report, that f l a g r a n t and mass v i o l a t i o n s of hiunan 
r i g h t s and fundamental freedoms were taking place i n Cuba. The Group of the 
Commission had observed no s i t t i a t i o n of that kind. The very small number of 
persons who repeated the l i e s preferred i n Washington could not contradict the 
t r u t h affirmed by the overwhelming majority of the Cuban people, which 
proclaimed i t s f a i t h i n the Revolution. Nor could i s o l a t e d cases be used to 
describe a general s i t u a t i o n . Popular support over the past 30 years 
explained how, despite the h o s t i l e a t t i t u d e , blockade, acts of aggression and 
defamatory campaigns a t t r i b u t a b l e to the largest Western power, Cuba, a 
S o c i a l i s t coimtry, was s t e a d f a s t l y continuing on i t s path. 

The meeting rose at 12.55 p.m. 


